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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Hallmark General
Insurance Company Ltd (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the auditor's
report thereon.

Directors

The following persons were directors of the Company at any time during the financial year and
up to the date of this report:

Jennifer Anne Boddington (Chairperson)
Shaun Patrick Feely

Christopher Paul Kneblanche

Paul Varro

Alison Ledger

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company during the year was that of a General insurer, operating
both in Australia and New Zealand. There has been no significant change in the nature of this
activity during the year.

The company is regulated by APRA in accordance with Section 122 of the Insurance Act. The
Company issues consumer credit insurance products.

Review of operations and the Covid-19 Pandemic
Total comprehensive loss of the Company was $(7,742,000) (2019: income $9,884,000).

This result was driven largely by a significant increase in claims expenses of $10,616,000 as the
business supported customers through the economic downturn. Premium revenue decreased by
$12,632,000 across all channels in Australia and New Zealand, and underwriting expenses
decreased by $3,322,000.

The COVID-19 outbreak become a global pandemic during the first half of 2020 and the duration,
scale and impact of the outbreak remains uncertain. In response to the rapidly changing situation,
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd’s Management team and Board implemented an action
plan in early March 2020 to manage the impact of COVID-19 on its operations including
employees, partners and customers, in accordance with Australian and New Zealand Government
guidelines.

Customers: A dedicated customer information hub was established to ensure that customers
were aware of what help and solutions were available, including access to a Hardship program.
The Hardship process was simplified making it easier for customers and enabling Hallmark
General Insurance Company Ltd to provide a solution to more customers faster. To find additional
ways to support customers, during April 2020, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd began
e mailing customers about Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd COVID-19 Assistance
Programs available.

Employees: Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ceased all international travel and halted
domestic travel within Australia and New Zealand in mid-March 2020. A travel registry and self-
isolation policy was also introduced to reduce risk, on return from International travel. To ensure
the safety of employees and the workplace, a working from home strategy was putin place in late
March 2020 that included technology for phone and videoconferencing. This enabled a large
proportion of staff to carry out their roles and support customers and partners from home whilst
some operational and other critical staff continued to support customers and partners from office
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

locations. To ensure employee safety, additional cleaning precantions and workstation etiquette
was implemented. Additionally, the management of staff well-being and communication on the
pandemic was enhanced through the creation of a central employee information hub and
additional People & Culture Team communication.

Business: The Management team and Board continue to assess the potential financial and
operational impacts on the Company, including the potential impact on expected claims.
Proactive steps have been taken including robust financial forecasting scenarios, cashflow
forecasting and the review of policy benefit strategies.

Given the continued uncertainties, any financial impact cannot be determined with certainty.
However, given Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd's response to the pandemic,
Management believes there is no material uncertainty of going concern and the annual financial
report has been prepared on this basis.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

During the year, the Company discontinued selling Disability and Im)oluntary Unemployment
Insurance on loans to new customers in Australia in April 2020 and Loan Protection Insurance in
New Zealand in December 2020.

There have been no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the
year.

Dividends

Dividends amounting to $700,000 were paid by the Company in respect of the financial year 31
December 2020 (2019: $11,279,000) to Latitude Insurance Holding Pty Limited.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2020 that has significantly affected, or
may significantly affect:

(a) the Company's operations;
(b) the results of those operations; or
(c) the Company's state of affairs.
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Likely developments and expected results of operations

Information about lilely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results
of those operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because
disclosure of the information would likely result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

(a) Insurance of officers

During the financial year and subsequent to the period end, Latitude Financial Services
Australia Holdings Pty Ltd, has paid Directors and Officers insurance and liability premiums on
behalf of the Company's ultimate Parent, KVD Singapore Pte, Ltd. and its subsidiaries. The
insurance has a limit of liability unless specified within the policy.

The insurance policies prohibit the disclosure of limits of liability, the nature of liability
indemnified and the premium payable.

{b) Indemnity of auditors

The Company has not during or since the end of the financial year, paid or agreed to pay any
premiums in respect of any person who has been an auditor of the Company for the purposes
of indemnifying them against any claims by third parties arising from their audit report.
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Directors’' report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to
bring proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the
Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or
part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the
Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Environmental regulations
The Company does not believe that its operations are subject to any particular or significant
environmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State of Territory.

Lead Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration is required under section 307C of the Corporations
Act 2001, forms part of the directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2020 and is set out
on page 9.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations {Rounding in Financial/Directors’
Reports} Instrument 2016/191 dated 24 March 2016 issued by Australian Securities and
Investments Commission, relating to the 'rounding off of amounts in the Directors' report and
the accompanying financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless
otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

ifer Anne Boddington (Chairperson)
gctor
Sydney
23 February 2021

A

aun PatriclfFeely {Chief Executive Officer)
irector

Sydney

23 February 2021
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Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd (the Company):

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 12 to 57 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

8] giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December
2020 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations
2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

(1)) the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 1.1; and

() there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

er Anne Boddington (Chairpers;)n]

J
Director
Sydney

23 February 2021

A

Shdun Patrick Jeely {Chief Executive Officer)
Director
Sydney

23 February 2021
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Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under
Section 3076 of the Gorporations Act 2001

To the Directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Hallmark Generat Insurance
Company Ltd for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 there have been:

i no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act
2007 in relation to the audit; and

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG Rachel Milum
Partner

Sydney
23 February 2021
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Independent Auditors Repart

To the shareholders of Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid

We have audited the Financial Report of Hallmark  The Finanecial Report comprises:
General Insurance Company Ltd (the Company).

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Report + Balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;
of the Company is in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including: « Statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive incorne, Statement of
e giving a true and fair view of the Company's changes in equity, and Statement of cash
financial position as at 31 December 2020 and flows for the vear then ended;
of its financial performance for the year ended

on that date: and s Notes including a summary of significant

accounting policies; and
e complying with Austrafian Accounting
Standards and the Corparations Regulations
2001.

« Directors’ Declaration.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Fthical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) {the Code} that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Hallmark General Insurance Company
Ltd's annual reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report.
The Directors are responsible for the Other Information.

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report was the Directors’ Report,
Qur opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, cur responsibility is to read the Other Information.
In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this Other Information,
and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date
of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.
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The Directors are rasponsible for:

e preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Austrafian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001;

« implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

and

« assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the
going concern hasis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aiternative but to do

50.

Our objective is:

« to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

o toissue an Audiior’s Report that includes our opinion,

Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will aiways detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
agaregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board wehsite at; http://Awww auasb gov.au/auditors respensibilities/ard.pdf.
This description forms part of our Auditor's Report.

L6 Vel Ll
KPMG Rachel Milum
Partner
Sydney

23 February 2021

1M



Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes $'000 $'000

Insurance premium revenue 37,918 50,550
Outwards reinsurance premium expense 2 {2}
Net insurance premiuin revenue 2.1(a) 37,920 50,548
Claims expenses {26,341) {15,725}
Net claims incurred 2.1{c) (26,341) {15,725}
Deferred acquisition costs amortisation (8,548) {10,068}
Administration expenses (14,070) {15,873)
Underwriting Expenses (22,618) (25,941)
Underwriting result (11,039) 8,882
Investment income 2.1(h) 1,623 3,509
Other expense (3) (53)
(Loss}/Profit before income tax (9,425) 12,338
Income tax benefit/(expense} 2.2(a) 1,977 (2,604)
{Loss)/Profit for the year (7,448) 9,734
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences arising during the year {294) 150

(294) 150
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax {294) 150
Total comprehensive (loss}/income for the year from
continuing operations {7,742) 9,884
{Loss)/Profit is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd {7,448) 9,734
(Loss)/Prefit for the year {7,448) 9,734
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd (7,742} 9,884
Other comprehensive {loss}/income for the year, net of tax (7,742) 9,884

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2020
2020 2019

Notes $'000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.1{a) 104,639 89,214
Investments 3.1(b} 22,908 55,516
Trade and other receivables 3.1{c) 761 1,348
Deferred tax assets 2.2{d} 1,302 828
Deferred acquisition costs 3.1(d) 5,616 10,605
Total assets 135,226 . 157,511
Liabilities
Trade and other liabilities 3.1{e} 704 2,898
Current tax liabilities 732 817
Provisions 3.1(0H 1,762 1,349
Outstanding claims liability 3.1(g) 21,319 13,845
Unearned premium liability 3.4(h} 33,258 52,691
Total liabilities 57,775 71,599
Net assets 77,451 85,912
Equity
Contributed equity 4.1(a) 2,000 2,000
Reserves 4.1(b) 64,576 64,889
Retained earnings 10,875 19,023
Total equity 77,451 85,912

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

Contributed Retalned Total

equity  Reserves Earnings Equity

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At1January 2019 2,000 63,386 20,568 85,954
Profit for the year - - 9,734 9,734
Other comprehensive income 4.1{b) - 150 - 150
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,000 63,536 30,302 95,838
Dividends paid or declared 2.3(a) - - (11,279) (11,279)
Tax consolidation reserve 4.1fh) - 1,353 - 1,353
At 31 December 2019 2,000 64,889 19,023 85,912
At 1 January 2020 2,000 64,889 19,023 85,912
Loss for the year - - (7,448) (7.448)
Other comprehensive expense 4.1(b) - (294) - (294)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,000 64,595 11,575 78,170
Dividends paid or declared 2.3(a) - - {700} {700}
Tax consolidation reserve 4.1(b) - (19} - {19}
At 31 December 2020 2,000 64,576 10,875 77,451

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes $'000 $'060

Cash flows from operating activities
Premium received net 19,153 40,122
Qutward reinsurance expense {4) (2}
Claims paid (18,777) (16,927)
Payments to suppliers and employees (18,125) {29,296)
Interest received 2,133 3,623
Net eash outflow from operating activities 2.1(e) (15,620) (2,480)
Maturity/(purchase) of investments 32,607 {13,805}
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 32,607 {13,805}

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 2.3[a) {7090} 11,279}
Net cash outflow from finaneing activities {700} {11,279}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 16,287 {27,564}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 89,214 116,391
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {862) 387
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 3.1(a) 104,639 89,214

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 1 - Basis of preparation
1.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Reporting entity

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd (the “Company”) is a company limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The Company is registered under the Insurance Act
1973. Its registered office and principal place of business is 800 Collins Street, Docklands,

Melbourne, Victoria, 3008.
These are the financial statements of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd, as at and for the

year ended 31 December 2020. Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd is a for-profit entity for
the purpose of preparing the financial statements,

The financial statements were authaorised for issue on 23 February 2021.

(b) Statement of compliance

These General Purpose Tier 1 financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board {AASB} and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Where necessary, comparatives figures have been re-classified for consistency with current
period disclosures as described in Note 5.5.

(¢) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

e Financial instruments measured at fair value, including financial assets backing insurance
policies designated at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments designated at
fair value though other comprehensive income,

(d) Covid-19 Pandemic

Given the continued uncertainties, the ongoing financial impact cannot be determined with
certainty. However, given Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd's response to the
pandemic as described in the Directors’ Report, Management believes there is no material
uncertainty of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd going concern and the financial
report has been prepared on this basis.

(e) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Hallmark General Insurance New Zealand Branch numbers have been
converted to Australian Dollars.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(f) Rounding of amounts

The company is of a Kind referred to in ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191, issued by the
Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the 'rounding off' of amounts in
the financial statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in
accordance with that Instrument to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest
dollar,

{g) Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements that conform to accounting standards requires
Management to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies and to make
estimates and assumptions. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have
a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to he reasonable under the
circumstances.

Areas invelving assumptions and estimates that are significant to the financial statements or
areas requiring a higher degree of judgement, are described below.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key area of estimation uncertainty for the Cotnpany is in its estimation of outstanding claims
and reinsurance recoveries. The claims expense is disclosed in note 3.1(g).

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Provision is made at the year end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
end of the reporting period, including the cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) to the
Company.

The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding
its claims exposure. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome will prove to be different from the originat liability established.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where more information about the
claim event is generally available. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the Company
uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally based upon statistical analyses of historical
experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the current claims will be consistent
with past experience. Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which may create
distortions in the underlying statistics, or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to
increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:

Page |17




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

changes in the economic environment

changes in the mix of business

medical and technological developments

change in unemployment factor for policy holders
changes in benefit structures

changes in claims management practice

. & & 0 @ @

The methods used to analyse past claims experience and to project future claims experience are
largely determined by the available data and the nature and maturity of the portfolio,

The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims liability and the specific assumptions
used are detailed in note 3.2.

Measurement of Outstanding Claims Liabilities

While the methodologies and assumptions applied remained unchanged from those applied in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has incorporated
estimates, assumptions and judgements specific to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic into the
measurement calculations as described in Note 3.2.

1.2 Other significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements have been
included in the relevant notes to which the policies relate. Other significant accounting policies
are listed below. These policies have been consistently applied to al] the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of
the transaction, Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on a net basis within other operating income or other expenses.

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.2 Other significant accounting policies (continued)
the date of that balance sheet,

e Income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are ftranslated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions}, and

o Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

1.3 New and amended standards
(a) New and amended standards adopted

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting - the AASB issued a new framework in May 2019
and applies to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The new Framework includes
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also introduces new
concepts on measurement, presentation and disclosure and new guidance on derecognition of
assets and liabilities.

Other amended standards
Other amended Standards that became effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
did not have a material impact on the Company.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2020
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. The Company expects to
adopt these on their effective dates.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (2014} became effective to the Company at 1 January 2018. AASB 9
Financial instruments, which addresses recognition and measurement requirements for financial
assets and financial liabilities, impairment requirements that introduce an expected credit loss
impairment model and general hedge accounting requirements, The Company is predominantly
connected with insurance and meets the requirements in AASB 2016-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards - Applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments with AABS 4 Insurance
Contracts. It is applying the temporary exemption to continue AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139) rather than AASB 9 until initial application of AASB
17 Insurance Contracts. The Company has yet to determine the extent of the impact.

AASB 17 Insurance Contracts - AASB 17 is effective for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2023. The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts. The objective of AASB 17 is to ensure that an
entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information
gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have
on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of the new requirements.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 2 - Results
2.1 Revenue and expenses

Accounting Policy

Revenue recognition .

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recewed or recewab]e The Company
recognises revenue from non-insurance activities when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue amount can be reliably measured. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement. In addition, the following specific recognition criteria apply
to revenue streams:

Premium revetiue : :

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance
contracts, excluding stamp duties and taxes cellected on behalf of third parties, 1nc1udang goods and
services tax in‘Australia.

Premium revenue is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when it has been earned. It is
recognised as earned from the date attachment of risk (generally the date a contract is agreed to but
not the earlier if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists) over the period of the related
insurance contracts in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk expected under the
contracts. The pattern of risks underwritten is generally matched by the passing of time but when
time does not approximate the pattern of risk, previous claims experience is used to derive the
incidence of risk.

Premium for unclosed business (business written close to reporting date where attachment risk is
prior to reporting date and there is insufficient information to accurately identify the business) is
brought to account based on previous experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern
of new busmess and renewals

The Company recogmses premium revenue in accordance wnth the requlrements of AASB 1023.

The unearned portion of premium is recogmsed with unearned premlum hablllty in the Statement
of Financial POSIthl‘l

Investment reventue
All investment income is recognised as revenue on an accruals bas:s Assetsare designated at fair

value through profit or loss and the related net realised and unrealised gains and losses arising on
financial assets designated af fair value through profit or loss are included in statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as investment revenue.

Claims expenses o

The Company's claims hablllty is measured as the presentvalue of expected future payments relating
to claims incurred at the reporting date. The expected future payments.include thoge estimates in
relation to claims incurred but not yet enough reported (IBNER's) and claims incurred but not yet
reported (IBNR's} based on past experience.

Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2,1 Revenue and expenses (continued)

treated as expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive i income: C}alms
expenses represent total clalm payments made durmg the year ad;usted for the movement 1n the
outstandmg clalms Ilahlllty S o S T o g

'I'he clalms llabihty is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appomted
actuary whose key assumpt:lons are outlined in note 3.2. S I

Other expenses ' :
-O'cher expenses are recogmsed in the statement of proﬁt or. loss and other‘b ompre
on'an aceruals ba51s B .

Outward remsurance premium expense : R e

Pr‘emlum ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance mth the pattern of
remsurance servme received. Accordingly, a portron of outwards reinsurance premium- is treated at:
the: reportmg date as deferred remsurance expense Remsurance recoverles on cl 1 s mc rred are.
recognlsed as revenue ' . ;

Deferred acqulsmon costs - - .
Costs, which vary. with and are primarily related to the production of new. busmess, have been,
deferred to the extent such costs are deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs prlmarlly;
include: commissions. Thege costs are amortised in proportion topremiums over the, estlmated lives:
of the pohcles Acwrite. down to recoverable amount is recognised where the present value.of
eXpected future c]alms (1nclud1ng settlément costs) in relation to business written tothe. end of thei
reportmg penod exceeds re]ated unearned premmms less the deferred acqursltlon costs ‘

-.‘.'. el

e

Goods and Sermces Tax. (GST] AL
Revenues, expenses and: assets are recogmsed net’ of the amount of associated GST. unles the 'GS'I'I
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authonty In this case, it is recogmsed as;part*of‘.the’
cost of acqulsmon of the asset or, as part of the expense. Receivables. and- payab]e are’stated.
mclusnve of the amount of GST. receivable-or payable. The net GST: recoverable from, or payahle to,
the taxation authorlty is inclided with other receivables or payablesin the balance sheet. Cash ﬂows
are presented On A'gross. ba51s The GST components of cash flows arising from mvestmg or _ﬁnancmg_
actmtles which’ are recoverable from or payable’ to the taxatlon authorlty, are: i)resented as
operating cash flows.. : L g
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2.1 Revenue and expenses (continued)

(a) Insurance premium revenue

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Gross written premium 18,970 39,837
Movement in unearned premium liability 18,948 10,714
QOutwards reinsurance premium expense 2 (2)
Net premium revenue 37,920 50,548
(b) Investmentincome
2020 2019
3000 $'000
Interest income 1,623 3,509
Total investment income 1,623 3,509
(c) Netclaims incurred
2020 2019
Current Prior Current Prior
Year Years Total Year Years Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross claims incurred
and related expenses
- undiscounted (23,790) (2,448) (26,238} (16,516) 939 {15,577)
Discountand
discount movement -
gross claims incurred 20 {123} {103) 81 (229) {148)
(23,770} {2,571} (26,341) {16,435) 710 (15,725)
Net claims incurred (23,770} (2,571) _ (26,341)  [16,435) 710 (15,725}

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior period claims relate
to a reassessment of the risks borne in all previous financial years.
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2.1 Revenue and expenses (continued)

{d} Profit before income tax

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
{Loss}/Profit before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
Empiloyee costs
Personnel cost (4,226) (4,933)
Contribution to superannuation fund {370) (414)
Change in annual and long service leave provision {451) (335)
Other administrative expenses
Marketing fees {230) {419)
Management fees - Related party {7,078) {7.536)

{e} Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating
activities

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Net (loss)/profit after income tax {7,448} 9,734
Adjustments
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents 862 (387}
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 587 395
(Increase}/decrease in net deferred tax assets (474} 3
Decrease in deferred acquisition costs 4,989 2,248
Decrease in trade and other payables {2,194} {4,185)
{Decresae)/increase in current tax liability (85) 40
Increase/(decrease)} in provisions 413 (128)
(Decrease)/increase in outstanding claim liahility 7,474 (1,189}
Decrease in unearned premium liability (19,433) {10,514}
{Decresae)/increase in tax consolidation reserve (19) 1,353
(Decresae}/increase in foreign currency translation reserve {294) 150
Net cash used in operating activities {15,620) (2,480)
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2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax

Taxation

Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses. The current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retirns with

respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax :
Deferred income tax is prowded in full, using the liability method, on temporary dlfferences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates {(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
" future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset and an intention to settle the liability simultaneously. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recogmsed in
other comprehenswe income or directly in equity respectwely :

Tax conselidation legislation

The Company is a member of the KVD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd income tax consolidated group
and has implemented the tax consolidation legislation. These entities are taxed as a single entity
.and the deferred tax assets and liabilities of these entities are set-off in the consolidated group
financial statements. The head and controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for
their own current and deferred tax accounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in
the tax consolidation group was a separate taxpayer. In addition to its own current and deferred
tax amounts, the Company also recognises the current tax liabilities (assets) and the deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in
the tax consolidation group. Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the
tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities
in the tax consolidated group. Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts
receivable or payable under the agreement are recognised as an equity contribution to {or
distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidation entities.

New Zealand branch
Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whereby tax is recognised as an
expense and is calculated after allowing for permanent differences, To the extent that differences
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2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax (continued)

occur between the: time items are recognised in the financial statements and when itenis are’ taken
into’ account in determlmng taxable income (timing d:fferences) ‘the" reiated future taxatxon;
beneﬁt and deferred income tax Tiability are dlsclosed asa deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
laabkl ty, respeether . . : ,

i
Syl

'allowed A non- resuient W1thhoidmg tax of 10% or approved !SSUEI‘ levy Df 2% epphes td Ny New
Zealand sourced 1nterest income on investments. . EES A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax (continued)

(a) Income tax expense

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Current tax on (loss)/profit for the year {1,510) 2,452
Deferred tax (income)/expense (482) 81
Over provision in prior year 15 71
Income tax (benefit)/ expense {1,977) 2,604

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable

1

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
{Loss)/profit from continuing operations before income tax expense {9,425) 12,338
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2,828) 3,701
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable} in calculating
taxable income:
Permanent differences (*) 803 (1,062}
Effect of differences in tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 33 (106)
Adjustments of prior periods 15 71
Income tax {benefit) /expense {1,977) 2,004

(™) Amortisation of acquisition costs and other items.

(c) Deferred tax expense represents movements in deferred tax assets/liabilities

2020 2019
£'000 $'000
Provisions and other liabilities {123) 80
Others {359) 1
(482) 81
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2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax {continued)
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Deferred tax assets
Provisions and other liabilities 486 417
Operating accruals - 3
Indirect claims handling expense 816 407
Others - 1
1,302 828
Net deferred tax assets 1,302 828
Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months 1,001 666
Amounts expected to be settled after more than 12 months 301 162
1,302 828

2.3 Shareholder returns

(a) Dividends

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Dividends paid and payable during the financial year ended 31 December 700 11,279
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Section 3 - General Insurance Assets & Liabilities and Risk
Management

3.1 Assets and liabilities
Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with fmanma] 1nst1tut10ns
and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Cash and cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

Investments

Investments include term deposits held at call with financial institutions and other highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or more that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash. Investments are carried at the face value of the amounts deposited as
their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.

Trade and other receivables

All premiurm and other receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts
are generally due for settlement within 30 days and less, where appl:cable, any provision for
doubtful debts. Collectability of premium and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off in the period in which they are
identified. Investment income accrued is measured at the carrying amounts of the interest
receivable measured using the effective interest rate method, net of any transaction costs.

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid and
IBNR's are recognised as revenue. Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the
assessment of the liability for outstanding claims and policy liabilities. - :

Classification of insurance contracts

‘Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or
another party by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified
uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as
insurance contracts. The risks associated with Insurance contracts are detailed further in note

3.3(d).
Asset backing insurance liabilities

The Company currently maintains a significant capital surplus. The Company has established a
target capital to ensure assets are available to meet insurance liabilities.

Financial assets
The Company has elected to designate all its financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
consistent with the provisions of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and are initially recognised at fair
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3.1 Assets and liabilities {continued)

value, excludmg transactron costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss'j in the pen 'cl in which:
Fir anmal assets’ are Subsequently measured at falr value at e' ‘ep ite with

Outstandmg claims ] abillty : R, .
The habxhty for outstandmg clalms covers the expected future payments for clatms mcludmg

Ton thls, the expected future payments are determlned and d;scounted to present va ueius_ g a
risk’ free rate : : , . o

The prov;smn for, the outstandmg clalms liability: also contains a rlsk margln to’ reﬂect the
inherent: uncertainty il the céntral estimate. The risk margin increases the probabrhty that the
net llablhty is adequately prowded for toa 90% (2019 90%] conﬁdence level -

Llablhty adequacy test B R

The adequacy of the insurance contract liahilities is evaluated each year. The insurarice contract
fest considers current estimates of all contractual and related cash. flows. Ifitis determzned us:ng
best estlmate assumptxons that a shortfall exzsts, itis immediately recogmsed in the proﬁt or. Ioss.

Unexplred t'lS]{ hablhty

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from. generai insurance busmess where the

Page |29




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

expected value of claims and expenses attributed to the unexpired periods of pohcnes in force at
the end of the reportmg period exceeds the unearned premiums provision.in relation to such
policies after the deduction of any deferred acquisition costs. The provision for unexplred risk is
calculated separately by reference to separate classes of business, which are managed together,
after taking into account the relevant investment return.

Unexpired risk liability, if any, remaining after writing off deferred acquisition costs is recogmsed
immediately in the profit or loss. Refer to note 3.1(g}{v)).

Employee benefits -

(i} Short term employee benefits

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months of year end represents the amount which the Company has a
present obligation to pay resulting from employees' services provided up to the balance date. The
provisions have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on wage and salary rates that
the Company expects to pay mcluclmg related on-costs.

( if} Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for employees entitled to long service leave represents the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Company resulting from employees' services
provided up to the balance date.

Llabllltles for employee entitlements, which are not expected to be wholly settled within 12
months, are discounted using the rates attaching to Australian Commonwealth Government
securities at balance date, which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities.
In determining the liability for employee entitlements, consideration has been given to future
increases in wage and salary rates, and the Company's experlenee W1th staff tenure Related on-
costs have also been mcluded in the l:ablllty : S

(ifi} ‘Defined ¢ontribution plans ' '
For defined contribution plans, the Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recogmsed as other staff expenses when they

are due,
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
$'000 3000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,213 2,081
Short term deposits 99,426 87,133
Total cash and cash equivalents 104,639 89,214
(b) Investments
2020 2019
5'000 $'000
Current assets
Term deposits 22,908 55,516
Total investments 22,908 55,516
(¢} Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Current assets
Other receivables 454 525
interest receivables 307 823
Total trade and other receivables 761 1,348

The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.

(d} Deferred acquisition costs

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current 2,912 5,759
Non-current 2,704 4,845
Total deferred acquisition costs 5,616 10,605
Reconciliation of changes in deferred ucquisition costs:
Opening balance at 1 January 10,605 12,852
Deferred acquisition costs incurred during the year (365) 2,328
Deferred acquisition costs written off during the year {1439) -
Amortisation charged to statement of profit or loss {3,185) {4,575)
Closing balance at 31 December 5,616 10,605

Deferred acquisition costs incurred during the year and amortisation charged to statement of
profit or loss relate to the Personal Loans portfolios as there were no deferred acquisition costs
for Credit Card portfolios, :
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)
{e) Trade and other liabilities

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Current
Trade and other payables 200 1,113
Accrued expenses 453 423
Payables to related parties 51 1,359
764 2,896
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximates fair value.
These balances include amounts payable to related parties (note 5.3{c)).
{f) Employee benefits and other provisions
2020 2019
Nen- Non-
Current Current Total Current current Total
$'600 $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000  $'C00
Leave obligations 789 36 825 709 20 729
Other employee benefit obligations 744 - 744 428 - 428
Total employee benefit obligations 1,533 36 1,569 1,137 20 1,157
Other provisions 193 - 193 192 - 192
Total employee benefit obligations
and other provisions 1,726 36 1,762 1,329 20 1,349

Total number of employees as at 31 December 2020: 57 {2019: 69)
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)
(g) Outstanding claims liability

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Ceniral estimate 14,762 9,628
Risk margin 4,553 2,696
Claims handling expense 2,030 1,654
21,345 13,879

Discount to present value [26) (134)
Gross outstanding claims liability 21,319 13,845
Current 14,261 8,598
Non-current 7,058 5,247
Total outstanding claims liability 21,319 13,845

(i} The following ranges of discount rates were used in the measurement of outstanding claims and
reinsurance recoveries.

Australia

The current year discount rate is 0.04% (2019: 0.9%)].

The subsequent years discount rate is 0.04% - 2.9% (2019: 0.9% - 2.7%).

The weighted average expected term to settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the
reporting period is estimated to be 1,19 years (2019: 1.08 years).

New Zealand Branch

The current year discount rate is 0.26% (2019: 1.12%)

The subsequent years discount rate is 0.26% (2019: 1.12%)

The weighted average expected term to settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the
reporting period is estimated to be 0.68 years (2019: 0.86 years)

(ii} Risk margin
Process for determining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The
overall margin adopted is determined by the Board after considering the uncertainty in the
portfolio, industry trends and the Company's risk appetite.

To determine the margin adopted the Appointed Actuary has reviewed the factors impacting the
portfolio to establish a recommended margin at the level required by the Board. Factors
considered include:

variability of claims experience of the portfolio;

quality of historical data;

diversification between different classes within the portfolio; and

increase in uncertainty due to future economic environment and legislative changes,
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

The level of uncertainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopted risk margin varies
between business classes. The risk margin is applied to the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversification allowance, is intended to achieve a 90% (2019:
50%) probability of sufficiency. :

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portfolio for 90% (2019: 90%) level of
adequacy are:

2020 2019
Ua %
Australia .
Consumer credit insurance - disability 21.5 232
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 42.5 46.8
New Zealand
Consumer credit insurance - disability 30.3 30.3
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 35.7 35.7
(iii} Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability
2020 2019
Gross Total Gross Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 13,845 13,845 15,034 15,034
Current year claims incurred 23,770 23,770 16,478 16,478
Change in previous year claims 2,414 2,414 {667) (667)
Current year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered (9,152) (9,152) (7,947) {7,947)
Previous year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered [9,558) (9,558) (9,053) [9,053)
Closing balance at 31
December 21,319 21,319 13,845 13,845
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

{iv} Claims development tables

Claims development tables are disclosed in order to put the claims estimates included in the
financial statements into context, allowing comparison of those claims estimates with the claims
results seen in previous years. In effect, the table highlights the Company's ability to provide a
reliable estimate of the total value of claims, The top part of the table provides a review of current
estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated claims have changed at
subsequent reporting or accidents year-ends. The lower part of the table provides a reconciliation
of the tota) reserve included in the statement of financial position and the estimates of cumulative
claims.

Gross
Reporting Year Accident Year
Prior*  2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
s'o00 $'000 $'000 $'ano $'000 j'oce $'000 3000 £'000 $'000
Estimate of gross
ultimate claims
cost
Atend of reporting
year - - - - 12,216 13,873 13,913 14,213 22,940 -
One year later - - - 11,002 12,55 13,224 14,269 16,880 - -
Tweo years later - - 12,290 11,572 12,251 13,244 15222 - - -
Three years later - 11,304 12427 11,730 12,505 13,574 - - B -
Four years later - 11,385 12,477 11,793 12,549 - - - - -
Five years later - 11,554 12570 11,944 - - - - - -
Six years later - 11,555 12,624 - - - - - - -
Seven years later - 11,549 - - - - - - - -

Current estimate of
cumulative claims 153,461 11,549 12,624 11,944 12,549 13574 15222 16880 22940 270,743

Cumulative

paymentstodate  (153459) (11542) (12,608) (11,857) (12,365) (13,091) (13,746) (13,049} (9,711) (251,426)
Undiscounted

cialms handling

exXpenses - 1 2 10 18 50 157 406 1,386 2,031
Gross outstanding

claims -

undiscounted 2 8 18 97 202 533 1,633 4,237 14,615 21,345
Discount impact - - B - - ~ (2} (5} [0k)] (26)
Gross outstanding

claims - discounted 2 ] 18 97 202 533 1,631 4,232 14,596 21,319

Page |35



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

Net
Reporting Year Accident Year
Priox*  2013*% 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
$'000 $'000 §'000 5000 $'on0 $'a00  $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Estimate of net
ultimate claims
cast
At end of reporting
year - - - - 12216 13,873 13,913 14,213 22,940 -
One year later - - - 11002 12155 13,224 14,269 16880 - -
Two years later - - 12,290 11,572 12,251 13,244 15222 - - -
Three years later - 11,304 12427 11,730 12,505 13,574 - - - -
Four years later - 11,385 12477 11,793 12,549 - " - - "
Five years later - 11,554 12570 11,944 - - - - n -
Six years later -~ 11,555 12,624 - - - - - - -
Seven years later - 11,549 - - - - - - - -

Current estimate of
cumulative claims 153,461 11,549 12624 11944 12,549 13,574 15222 16880 22940 270,743

Cumulative
payments to date (153,459) (11,542) {12,608} (11,857) (12,365) (13,091) (13,746) (13,049) (9711) (251,428}

Undiscounted elaims
handling expenses - - - - -

Net outstanding

claims -

undiscounted 2 8 18 97 202 533 1,633 4,237 14,615 21,345
Discount impact - - - - - - (2) (5} (19) (26)
Nets outstanding

claims - discounted 2 8 i8 97 202 533 1,631 4,232 14,596 21,319

(v} Liability adequuacy test

The liability adequacy test (LAT} is an assessment of the carrying amount of unearned premium
liabilities and is conducted at the end of each reporting period. The test is calculated separately
for each portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together
as a single portfolio.

The probability of sufficiency adopted for LAT differs from the 90% (2019: 90%) probability of
sufficiency adopted in determining the outstanding claims labilities (refer to note 3.1). The
reason for this difference is that the former is in effect an impairment test used only to test the
sufficiency of net unearned premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measurement accounting
policy used in determining the carrying value of the outstanding claims liabilities.

As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak a LAT assessment was performed at the 30 June 2020
reporting date, at which point a LAT deficiency arose for the Australian business, and a write off
of the requisite deferred acquisition costs was recognised of $1.4m (2019: nil).

Far the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the net premium labilities at a 75% probability of
sufficiency as at 31 December 2020 is $15,265,712 (2019: $38,614,396), therefore the liability
adequacy test at reporting date resulted in a surplus for the company.
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

(h) Unearned premium liability

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 January 52,691 63,205
Premiums written during the year (1,822) 11,640
Premiums earned during the year (17.611) (22,154)
Closing balance as at 31 December 33,258 52,691
Current 17,247 28,622
Non-current 16,011 24,069
Total unearned premium lability 33,258 52,691

Premiums written and earned during the year relate to the Personal Loans portfolios as there
were no unearned premium liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 for the

Credit Card portfolios.
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods
{a) Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilities (actuarial methods)

The Company writes consumer credit insurances.The risks covered in this group include:
s [nvoluntary Unemployment
¢ Disability
¢ Merchandise Protection, Price Protection
e Stolen Cards

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance liabilities is to analyse all available past
experience, including the number of reported and finalised claims, timing and amounts of claim
payments. This analysis allows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities
at the balance date can be estimated.

The determination of the outstanding claims liabilities involves two steps:
1. The determination of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date.

The central estimate of outstanding claims includes an allowance for claims incurred but
not reported (IBNR) and the further development of reported claims, also known as
incurred but not enough reported (IBNER). The central estimate has no deliberate bias
towards either over or under estimation, This means that the central estimate is assessed
to have approximately 50% chance of adequacy.

2. The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision to be
added to the central estimates of outstanding claims. The risk margin is intended
to achieve a 90% probability of adequacy at an aggregate level.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liabilities involves the use of the following standard
aggregate projection methods: Payment Chain Ladder ("PCL"); Payment Per Claim Incurred
(“PPCI"); Payment Per Claim Finalised (“PPCF"); Payment Per Claim Handled ("PPCH"); and
Bornheutter Ferguson (“BF”). A blend of the projection methods is adopted based on the nature
of the claims within each portfolio to estimate the appropriate cutstanding claims.
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

(b} Actuarial assumptions

The key actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims liabilities of

the consumer credit insurance portfolios are as follows:

2020
Unemployment Disability
(Personal {Personal Unemployment
Loans) Loans) {Credit Cards)
Australia:
Number of future
finalisations 539 601
Discounted loss ratio* 96% 49%
Expense rate 12% 12%
0.04%p.a. - 0.04%pa. -~
Discount rate 2.9%p.a. 2.9%p.a.
2019
Unemployment Disability
{Personal (Personal Unemployment
Loans) Loans) (Credit Cards)
Australia;
Number of future
finalisations 263 641
Discounted loss ratio* 22% 35%
Iixpense rate 15.5% 15.5%
0.9%p.a. - 0.9%p.a. -
Discount rate 2.7% pa. 2.7%p.a.
*As at December

Merchandise
Protection, Price
Protection and
Stolen Cards
(Credit Cards)

1,147
35
48%

0.04%p.a. -
2.9%p.a.

Merchandise
Protection, Price
Protection and
Stolen Cards
(Credit Cards)

938
23%
15,5%

0.9%p.a.
2.7%p.a.

Page |39




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Other assumptions

The outstanding claims provision for Disability (Personal Loans) includes an additional 1.3% for
medical expenses, with a prudential margin calculated at a 90% probability of adequacy,

The claims assumptions adopted to determine the outstanding claims liability takes into
consideration the impact on claims experience from the change in economic environment
{predominantly changes in unemployment rate) as a result of COVID19.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided
below:

1. Number of future finalisations : The number of future finalisations has been based
on an analysis of historical claim reports and finalisation rates, This then enables the
future numbers of reports, handled claims and finalisations to be projected. The
analysis of historical claim reports and finalisation rates were performed separately
for COVID-19 related claims and non-COVID-19 related claims. For COVID-19 related
claims, the analysis allows for the higher unemployment and underemployment rate
and any changes in the claims acceptance process as a result of the lockdowns.

2. Average claim size : The adopted average claim size has been based on historical
ratios of claim payments to factors such number of claim reported, claim finalised or
handled. Adjustments are also made for the impacts which are not in historical claims
experience to arrive the final adopted assumption. Under the COVID19 economic
environment, the adjustment made to average claim size allows for the changes in the
claimants’ behaviour arising from a higher unemployment or underemployment rate.

3. Expense rate: The adopted claims handling expense rate of 12.4% (2019: 15.5%) of
the projected gross claim payments, has been determined based on the results of an
expense allocation carried out in 2020,

Discount rate : The central estimate of the Qutstanding Claims Liabilities has been
discounted to allow for future investment income attributable to the liabilities during
the run off period. The future investment earnings assumptions are estimates of the
future annual risk-free rates of return. The Australian rates have been derived from
the yield curve on Australian Government Bonds as at 31 December 2020 as
published by the Reserve Bank of Australia. The New Zealand discount factor has been
based on the annual risk-free rates of return from the yield curve on New Zealand
Government Bonds.
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)
(c) Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reported results are calculated based on the
key actuarial assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial
assumptions will impact the profit or loss and equity of the Company. The table below
describes how a change in each of the assumptions will affect the outstanding claims liabilities.

Key actuarial Changes Impact on ret Impact on total
assumptions 2020 outstanding claims outstanding claims
liabilities ($'000's) Ilabilities (%)
Australia:
Reported claims chain  Increase the chain ladder +484 +3.1
ladder factor factor by 10%
Discount rate Decrease discount rate by 1% +158 +1.0
Claims handling expense Increase claims handiing +595 +3.9
rate expense rate by 4%
New Zealand*:
Chain ladder factor Increase the chain ladder +87 +1,37
factor by 10%
Discount rate Decrease discount rate by 1% +47 +0.74
Claims handling expense Increase claims handling +256 +4.03
rate expense rate by 4%
Key actuarial Changes Impact on net Impact on total
assumptions 2019 outstanding claims outstanding claims
liabilities ($'000's) liabilities (%)
Australia:
Reported claims chain  Increase the chain ladder +230 +2.1
ladder factor factor by 10%
Discount rate Decrease discount rate by 1% +116 +1.1
Claims handling expense Increase from claims handling +412 +3.8
rate expense rate by 4%
New Zealand*:
Chain ladder factor Increase the chain ladder +34 +1.14
factor by 10%
Discount rate Decrease discount rate by 19 +26 +0.86
Claims handling expense Increase from claims handling +117 +3.90

rate

expense rate by 4%

*Branch credit insurances only
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3.3 Financial risk management
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty failing to meet their contractual
obligations and principally arises from the Company’'s investment in financial instruments,
receivables from related or other parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit
risk:

(a) Financial assets

The Company's investment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved
by the Board. The guidelines establish credit approval authorities, concentrations limits, and
approved investment portfolio parameters, these guidelines comply with the Investment Policy.
Management conducts a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is monitored and
exposures or breaches are reported to the Board. The mandate is reviewed regularly for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment,

The Company only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A3/BBB- from
Standard & Poor's (S&P). The Company further limits its exposure to credit risk by setting
individual exposure limits. There is no significant concentration of credit risk and management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations,

{b} Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management
strategy (ReMS). Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A, The Company
further sets its exposure to credit risk by setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each
reporting period, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and
updates the ReMS.

{c¢] Trade and other receivables

The Company's maximum credit risk exposure at balance date is limited to the carrying amount
of the financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The Company does not have
a significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (See

nete 5.3(b)).
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.

Non- Nen-
investment investment Total neither
Investment grade grade pastdue nor Pastdue or :

grade satisfactory* unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 104,639 - - 104,639 - 104,639
Investments 22,908 - - 22,908 - 22,908
Trade and other
receivables - 761 - 761 - 761
Total credit risk
exposure 127,547 761 - 128,308 - 128,308

Non- Non-
investment investment Total neither
Investment grade grade pastdue nor Pastdueor

grade satisfactory* unsatisfactory imparied impaired Total
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 89,215 - - 89,215 - 89,214
Investments 55,516 - - 55,516 “ 55,816
Trade and other '
receivables - 1,348 - 1,348 - 1,348
Fotal credit risk
exposure 144,731 1,348 - 146,079 - 146,078

*A receivable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied that the obligor has the
capacity to meet its financial obligations.
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

The table below classifies the financial assets of the Company by counterparty credit rating

{(S&P)
AAA AA A BBB Notrated Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 85,478 12,161 7,000 - - 104,639
Investments 9,429 5,629 7,850 - - 22,908
Trade and other receivables - - - - 761 761
Total credit risk exposure 94,907 17,790 14,850 - 761 128,308
AAA AA A BBB Notrated Totai
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 5000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 89,215 - - 89,214
Investments 16,065 36,951 2,500 - - 55,516
Trade and other receivables - - - - 1,348 1,348
Total credit risk exposure 16,065 36,951 91,715 - 1,348 146,078
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3.3 Financial risk management {(continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company’s objective and funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of

funding sources to meet actual and contingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market
conditicns.

The Company's liquidity is primarily monitored through the production of statement of cash
flows for Board review. Periodic review of the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets
and liabilities is performed to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of both cash and cash equivalents; investments
and of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the Company's financial liabilities at
balance date:

Over 5
Uptoayear 1-Zyears 2-5years years Total
2020 $'000 5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 104,639 - - - 104,639
Investments 22,908 - - - 22,908
Trade and other liabilities (704) - - - {704}
Outstanding claimns liability {14,261} (4,190) (2,730) (138)  (21,319)
Net liquid assets 112,582 (4,190} (2,730} (138} 105,524
' . Over5
Uptoayear 1-Zyears  2-5years years Total
2019 $'000 $'060 5000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 89,214 - - - 89,214
Investments 55,516 - - - 55,516
Trade and other liabilities {2,897) - - - (2,898)
Qutstanding claims liability {8,598) {3,041) (2,143) (63) {13,845)
Net liguid assets 133,235 (3,041) {2,143} {63) 127,988

The Company's financial assets and liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at amounts that
approximate fair value.
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)
Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recognised assets and liabilities or the cash flows from
possible future transactions, that are denominated in a currency, other than that of the functional
currency, will decrease due to changes in market exchange rates.

The Company has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material.

The Company has a New Zealand branch whose assets and liabilities are denominated in New
Zealand dollars. On translation of the New Zealand branch into the reporting currency (Australian
dollars) of the Company, exchange rate variations on Statement of Financial Position items are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve within the Company. The Company is
exposed to currency risk on the translation of Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive income items and the settlement of monetary balances between the Australian
and New Zealand businesses.

At the balance date, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

NZD NZD

Total assets denominated in New Zealand dollars: 34,327 39,839
Total liabilities denominated in New Zealand dollars: 23,304 26,324

A 10% strengthening in the value of the Australian dollar {AUD) against the New Zealand dollar (NZD] at
the balance date would increase/{decrease) equity and increase/{decrease) profit by the amounts
shown below:

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

AUD AUD

Strengthening of the AUD against the NZD will {decrease) equity by: {1,023) (1,281)
Strengthening of the AUD against the NZD will increase/{decrease) profit

by: 198 {491)

A 10% weakening in the value of the AUD against the NZD at the balance date would have had the equal
but apposite effect to the amounts shown above. The following exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date rate
2020 2019 2020 2019
NZD1 = AUD 0.936 0.960 0.936 0.948
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates.

The following table analyses the impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest
rates on the Company's operating results.

Impacton
Carrying Change in profit
amount variables before tax Impact on eguity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2years 2-5years years
2020 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 99,426 -0.1% (99} (30} . - - (30)
Investments 22,908 -0.1% (23) {7 - - - {7}
Total 122,334 {122) (37} - - - {37)
Impact on
Carrying Change in profit
amount variables before tax impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2years 2-5years years
2019 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 87,133 -1% {871) (261) - - - {261)
Investments 55,516 -1% (555) (167) - - - (167}
Total 142,649 (1,426) (428} - - - (428}

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020 with the variable interest rate being
reduced to a minimum of 0.0% if applicable.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities or financial instruments could change due to
fluctuations in market prices. The Company has no equity securities as at 31 December 2020.
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3.3 Financial risk management {continued)

Insurance risk

(d} Insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk
from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future
event that will adversely affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty
surrounding the probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its
effect. Insurance risk is assessed by the Company at a contract level on its inception and is
periodically reassessed as the risk may vary during the period of insurance cover.

The majority of direct insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis.
There are no special term and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material
impact on the financial statements.

The business written consists mainly of consumer credit insurances.

(e) Insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financial
impact of events that may require settlement by the insurer; and the ability of the Company to
mitigate the financial impact of these events on its operating results.

In accordance with Prudential Standards CPS 220 Risk Management and GPS 230 Reinsurance
Management for General Insurers issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the
Company have developed, implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management
strategy (RMS) and a reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS identify the Company's policies, procedures, processes and controls that
address all known material risks, financial and non-financial arising from the business. Annually,
the board certifies to APRA that adequate strategies have been putin place to monitor those risks,
that the Company has systems in place to ensure compliance with legislative and prudential
requirements, and that the board has satisfied itself as to the compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further below.
(¢ Underwriting strategy

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the Company has the ability to
meet the insurance needs of the policy holders and to ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims
when due, The strategy involves the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and
involves the application of mathematical modeling to determine that products are appropriately
priced.
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

() Reinsurance strategy

A conservative approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the
Company and where deemed appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured events
according to its ReMS. All reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and statistical modeling to
ensure that they offer a sufficient level of cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment
with the ReMs of the Company.

No reinsurance is in place for the Company's consumer credit insurance products.

@iy Claims management

Strict claims management procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in
accordance with policy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored to track the actual versus
expected experience of the portfolio, with feedback delivered to underwriting and product
development.

(iv) Concentration of insurance risk

The Company's portfolio of products and policy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there
is no material concentration of insurance risk.

Page |49




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 4 - Capital Management
C ti ic
Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the i 1ssue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

4.1 Capital management

The Company's capital management strategy plays a central role in managing capital risk arising
from the business activities of the Company, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect
policyholders' interests and satisfy regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficient capital
levels are maintained in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The Company has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage
its capital position. The target surplus level has been set with reference to a range of risks and
possible adverse scenarios faced by the Company.

The Company has net assets in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting its
current strong capital position.

In addition to the Company's target surplus pelicy, external capital requirements are set and
regulated by APRA. The Company calculates its capital position according to the relevant
prudential standards which ensures sufficient capital margins to meet policyholders obligations
are maintained. An insurer’s capital base is expected to be adequate for the size, business mix,

complexity and risk profile of its business.

Itis the Company's policy to hold a capital base in excess of those required by APRA according to
its target surplus policy. The capital level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a
regulatory breach.

For detailed information on the Company's capital position and the capital requirements of APRA,
refer to note 3.3,
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4.1 Capital management (continued)

{a) Contributed equity
{i} Share capital

2020 2019 2020 2019

Shares - Shares $'000 $'000

Ordinary shares - fully paid 10,001 10,001 2,400 2,000
10,001 10,001 2,000 2,000

(ii} Ordinary shares

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All
issued shares are fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of
the Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

(iii}  Parent entities

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is owned by Latitude Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd with
100% majority interest, which is incorporated in Australia. The Company's ultimate parent entity
is KVD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd, which is incorporated in Australia.

(b) Reserves

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Tax consolidation reserve
At 1 January 63,802 62,449
Tax consolidation reserve movement {19} 1,353
At 31 December 63,783 63,802
Foreign currency translation reserve
At 1 January 1,087 937
Currency transiation differences arising during the year (294} 150
At 31 December 793 1,087
Total reserves 64,5376 64,889

Tax consolidation reserve

The tax consolidation reserve records the impact of the funding arrangement adopted under the
tax consolidation regime, Any difference between the current tax liability and the amount paid by
a member of the tax group, under the tax funding agreement, is recognised as an equity
contribution in the tax consolidation reserve or as a distribution within equity.
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Foreign currency translation

Exchange differences arising on translation of entities that have a non-Australian dollar
functional currency are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate reserve within equity.

Capital adequacy

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the general insurance
contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse future experience and poor investment returns.
The amendments to the risk-based prudential capital standards, Life and General Insurance
Capital (LAGIC) standards, for Australian life and general insurance companies were introduced
effective 1 july 2019. The required level of capital for regulatory purposes (the Prescribed Capital
Amount, or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a general insurer
is exposed and a general company must ensure that the general company has, atall times, a capital
base in excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as required by APRA}.

The excess of the Company's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2020 was $57.1 million
(2019: $63.0 million).

In addition to the regulatory capital requirements, the Company maintains a target surplus
providing an additional capital buffer against adverse events.

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
{a) Capital base 78,265 88,451
{b) Prescribed capital amount 21,141 25,449
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a] - (b} 57,124 63,002
Capital adequacy multiple = (a)/(b) 370% 348%
Capitai Base:
Net assets 77,451 85,913
Regulatory adjustment applied in the calculation of tier 1 capital 814 2,538
Common equity Tler 1 Capital 78,265 88,451
Prescribed capital amount:
Insurance risk charge 6,530 7,753
Insurance concentration risk charge 12,303 14,894
Asset risk charge 2,358 3,186
Operational risk charge 1,699 1,957
Aggregation benefit {1,749} (2,340)
Prescribed capital amount 21,141 25,449
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Section 5 - Other Disclosures

5.1 Commitments and contingencies

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is subject to a number of obligations which, if not
discharged, may give rise to potential claims. Where some loss from non-performance of an
obligation is more likely than not and can be reliably estimated, provisions have been made. The
Company considers that the outcome of any specific enquiry which is underway as at 31
December 2020, and has not been provided for, is not expected to affect its financial position in
any material way, either individually or in aggregate.

Regulatory and customer exposures

In recent years there has been an increase in the number of matters on which the Company
engages with its regulators, There have also been significant increases in the nature and scale of
regulatory investigations, surveillance and reviews, civil and criminal enforcement actions
(whether by court action or otherwise), formal and informal inquiries, regulatory supervisory
activities and the quantum of fines issued by regulators, particularly against financial institutions
bath in Australia and globally. The Company has received various requests for information from
its regulators as part of both industry-wide and Company-specific reviews and has also made
disclosures to its regulators at its own instigation. The nature of these interactions can be wide
ranging and, for example, currently include a range of matters including product suitability and
distribution, customer remediation and insurance distribution. There may be exposures to
customers which are additional to any regulatory exposures. These could include individual
claims or customer remediation or compensation activities. The outcomes and total costs
associated with such reviews and possible exposures remain uncertain.

There is a risk that any contingent liability may be larger than anticipated. There is also a risk that
additional litigation or contingent liabilities may arise, all of which could adversely affect our
business, prospects, reputation, financial performance or financial condition.

No commitments, contingent assets or contingent liabilities existed as at 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

5.2 Events occurring after the reporting date

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2020 that has significantly affected, or
may significantly affect:

{a) the Company's operations;
) the results of those operations; or
{c) the Company's state of affairs.
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5.3 Related party transactions

(a) Key management personnel disclosures

The following persons were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the

reporting period.
(i} Directars

Jennifer Anne Boddington (Chairperson)
Shaun Patrick Feely

Christopher Paul Knoblanche

Paul Varro

Alison Ledger

(if} Other executives

Anna Chung
Cath Mortlock
James Murphy
Nick Lethbridge
Rebecca Blair

Key management personnel compensation

The following compensation is paid to Key Management Personnel (KMP} covering the

Company and any Australian and New Zealand related party entities:

2020 2019

$ $

Short-term employee henefits® 2,773,148 3,221,470
Long-term benefits 28,016 52,469
Post-employment benefits 172,630 183,830
Share based payments 1,391,283 666,826
4,365,077 4,124,595

Compensation paid above includes share based awards that were pranted to participants during their

time in a KMP role during the year as follows:

2020 2019

$ 5

At 1 January 887,896 -
Granted 719,068 618,750
Plan modification 603,551 -
Equity adjustments 763,003 269,146
at 31 December 2,973,518 887,896
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At 31 December 2020 KMP had outstanding balances payable totalling $13,015 (2019: $8,505} in
respect of lending products with related parties. The total available credit facility during the
period was $31,500 (2019: $23,000} and the maximum drawn amount during the period was
$25,611 (2019: $13,981). Interest charged on these products issued to KMP was at normal
consumer rates and under normal terms and conditions.

* There were no termination benefits paid in 2020 {2019: $nil)
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5.3 Related party transactions (continued}

(b} Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Management fees paid to/(received from}:
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Ltd
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd

Cross charges paid to:
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Ltd

Commission paid to/{received from):
Latitude Finance Australia
Latitude Personal Finance Pty Ltd
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ

Dividend paid/(received):
Latitude Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

Receivables/(payables) outstanding at the end of the perfod:
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Ltd
Latitude Finance Australia:

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Latitude Personal Finance Pty Ltd
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ

2020

8,585,052
(1,506,939)

1,861,767

2,417,084
(501,556}
1,117,218

700,600

2020
3

77,561
536,005
341,051

(587,858)
(418,214)

2019

9,259,408
(1,723,235)

7,047,396

3,375,753
947,119
2,602,604

11,278,704

2019
$

(2,984,335)
824,903
432,331

(177,315)
544,788

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no
expense has been recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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5.4 Remuneration of auditor

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of
the Company and its related practices:

{(a) Remuneration to KPMG

2020 2019
3 $
Audit services
Audit of financial statements 80,000 80,000
Assurance services
Auditors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd are KPMG
APRA Return Audit 20,000 20,000
AFSL Audit 5,000 5,000
Other services . -
Total remuneration for Audit and Regulatory assurance services 105,000 105,000

Audit fees in 2020 and in 2019 were paid by Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty
Ltd.

5.5 Reclassification

Certain cash equivalents have been reclassified to investments to conform to the current year’s
presentation, The reclassification does not have any effect on total assets, total equity and profit
or loss as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020. Below is summary of the reclassification.

As previously As

reported reclassified
2019 Reclassification 2020
$'a00 $'000 $'000
Balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 144,730 {55,516) 89,214
Investments - 55,516 55,516
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Directors' report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Hallmark General
Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (the Branch) for the year ended 31 December 2020

and the auditor’s report thereon,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

'

Sydney
23 February 2021

Y1

Shaun Patriclf Feely (Chief Executive Officer)
irector

Sydney

23 February 2021
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Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
(“the Branch"):

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 9 to 48 are in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Act 2013, including:

] giving a true and fair view of the branch’s financial position as at 31 December
2020 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

{b) the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 1.1; and

Q there are reasonable grounds to believe that the branch will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

jehwdfer Anne Boddingion {Chairperson)
Director

Sydney

23 February 2021

SHaun Patrifk Feely (Chief Executive Officer)
Director

Sydney

23 February 2021
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ndependent Auditors Repor

To the shareholders of Hallmark General Insurance Company Limited New Zealand branch

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) ('ISAs (NZ)). We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

We are independent of the Branch in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code of
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners {Including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Boeard and the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) ('IESBA Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code.

Qur responsibilities under 1ISAs (NZ} are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial staterments section of our report.

© @ Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Materiality helped us to determine the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually
and on the financial statements as a whole. The materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at
$348,000 determined with reference to a benchmark of Branch’s Revenue. We chose the benchmark because,
in our viewv, this is a key measure of the Branch's performance.

6

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and
logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by
a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit

E Key audit matters

of the financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those matters and our key audit
procedures to address those matters in order that the sharehclders as a body may better understand the

process by which we arrived at our audit opinion. Gur procedures were undertaken in the context of and solely

for the purpese of our statutery audit opinion on the financial statements as a whole and we do not express
discrete opinions on separate elements of the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of Qutstanding Claim Liabilities {($6,346,000}

Refer to Note 3.1 (f} to the Financial Report.

The valuation of the Outstanding Claim Liabilities is
a key audit matter due to the following:

Judgement is required by us to consider
estimates and judgemenis thai are used in
developing assumptions that affect the
reported amounts at year end.

Specific audit and actuarial expertise using
senior resources is required io evaluate
complex actuarial methodologies  and
assumptions that take into account the risks
and uncertainties.

The assumptions include number of future
finalisations based on an analysis of historical
claim reports and finalisation rates; discounted
loss ratio; discount rates based on related vield
curves; claim handling expense; and medical
expenses.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Evaluating the key controls in the general
insurance contract liabilities measurement
process, including controls over the
integrity of the base data used in the
estimation process.

Using KPMG Actuarial specialists to
challenge the appropriateness of the
actuarial methods and assumptions used
by the Branch.

Assessing the overall level of reserving is
appropriste given the consideration of
historical and current claims expense, the
entity overall methodology, and historicat
gvidence of the adequacy or ctherwise of
the previous period's reserve level.

identify where there are indicators of
possible management bias.

1=

The Directors, on behalf of the Branch, are responsible for the other information included in the entity's financial

Other information

staternents. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




K

5 .. . [
XY Use of this independent auditor’s report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholders as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in the
independent auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the shareholders as a body for our audit work, this independent
auditor's report, or any of the opinions we have formed.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors, on behalf of the Branch, are responsible for:

— the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand {being New Zealand Equivalenis to International Financial Reporting
Standards) and International Financial Reporting Standards;

— implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a set of financial statements that is
fairly presented and free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error; and

- gssessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related
0 going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

% L Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objective is:

— to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

-— 10 issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs NZ will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstaterents can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of these financial statements is located at the External
Reporting Board (XRB) website at:

httn:fwww xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-2/

This description forms part of our independent auditor's report.

b6 Yook ML

KPMG Rachel Milum
Partner

Sydney
23 February 2021



Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes $'000 $'000
Insurance premium revenue 12,679 15,519
Net insurance premium revenue 2.1(a) 12,679 15,519
Claims expenses (8,695} (3,459}
Net claims incurred 2.1(c) (8,695} (3,459}
Acquisition costs (2,544) (3,129}
Administration expenses (3,840} (4,348)
Underwriting Expenses (6,384] (7,477)
Underwriting result (2,400) 4,583
Investment income 2.1(b) 652 1,025
QOther expense {9) {55)
{Loss) /profit before income tax {1,757) 5,553
Income tax expense 2.2(a) {355) {434)
{Loss)/Profit for the year {2,112) 5119
Total comprehensive (loss}/income for the year from
continuing operations (2,112) 5119
(Loss)/profitis atiributable to:
Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New
Zealand Branch {2,112) 5,119
{Loss)/Profit for the year {2,112) 5119
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year is attributable to:
Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New
Zealand Branch (2,112) 5,119
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (2,112) 5119

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Trade and other receivables
Deferred acquisition costs
Total assets

Liabilities

Trade and other liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Outstanding claims liability
Unearned premium liability
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Retained earnings
Total equity

Notes

3.1(a)
3.1(h)
3.1(c)
3.1(d)

3.1(e)

3.1{f)
3.1(g)

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
14,915 26,690
16,050 8,450
180 248
3,092 4,452
34,237 39,840
713 232
790 885
6,346 2,992
15,454 22,215
23,303 26,324
10,934 13,516
10,934 13,516
10,934 13,516

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of
Hatlmark General Insurance

Company Ltd

Retained Total

Earnings Equity

Notes $'000 $'000

At 1 January 2619 13,947 13,947
Profit for the year 5119 5119
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,119 5119
Dividends paid or declared (5,550} (5,550
At 31 December 2019 13,516 13,516
At 1 January 2020 13,616 13,516
Loss for the year (2112) (2112)
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,404 11,404
Dividends paid or declared {470} (470)
At 31 December 2020 10,934 10,934

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Premium received 5,936 13,830
Claims paid (5,335) (3,165}
Payments to suppliers and employees (5.,017) (7,483)
Interest received 711 1,018
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities 2.1(d) {3,705} 4,200
{Purchase)/maturity of investments (7,600) 7,550
Net cash {outflow}/inflow from investing activities (7,600) 7,550

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to company's shareholders {470} (7,255}
Net cash outflow from financing activities {470} (7,255}
Net {decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,775) 4,495
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 26,690 22,195
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 3.1{a) 14,915 26,690

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 1 - Basis of preparation

1.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Reporting entity

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (the Branch) was registered in
New Zealand on 5 April 2011, under the Companies Act 1993. These are the financial statements
of the New Zealand Branch of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd.

The parent entity of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is Latitude Insurance Holdings Ltd.
The ultimate parent entity of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is KVD Australia Holdco
Pty Ltd.

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in the
underwriting of general insurance risks.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 23 February 2021,

(b) Statement of compliance

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is a company registered under the New Zealand
Companies Act 1993. These General Purpose Tier 1 financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the Companies Act
1993. The financial report complies with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (NZ [FRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB).
The branch is a reporting entity for the purpose of the Financial Markets Conduct 2013 and its
financial statements comply with that Act.

Where necessary, comparatives figures have been re-classified for consistency with current
period disclosures as described in Note 5.5,

(c) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have heen prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

¢ Financial instruments measured at fair value, including financial assets backing insurance
policies designated at fair value through profit or loss, equnty investments designated at
fair value though other comprehensive income.

(d) Covid-19 Pandemic

The COVID-19 outbreak become a global pandemic during the first half of 2020 and the duration,
scale and impact of the outbreak remains uncertain. In response to the rapidly changing situation,
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd’s Management team and Board implemented an action
plan in early March 2020 to manage the impact of COVID-19 on its operations including
employees, parmers and customers, in accordance with Australian and New Zealand Government
guidelines.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.1 Basis of preparation {continued)

Customers: A dedicated customer information hub was established to ensure that customers
were aware of what help and solutions were available, including access to a Hardship program.
The Hardship process was simplified making it easier for customers and enabling Hallmark
General Insurance Company Ltd to provide a solution to more customers faster. To find
additional ways to support customers, during April 2020, Hallmark General Insurance Company
Ltd began e mailing customers about Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd COVID-19
Assistance Programs available.

Employees: Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ceased all international travel and halted
domestic travel within Australia and New Zealand in mid-March 2020. A travel registry and self-
isolation policy was also introduced to reduce risk, on return from International travel. To
ensure the safety of employees and the workplace, a working from home strategy was put in
place in late March 2020 that included technology for phone and videoconferencing. This
enabled a large proportion of staff to carry out their roles and support customers and partners
from home whilst some operational and other critical staff continued to support customers and
partners from office locations. To ensure employee safety, additional cleaning precautions and
workstation etiquette was implemented. Additionally, the management of staff well-being and
communication on the pandemic was enhanced through the creation of a central employee
information hub and additional People & Culture Team communication.

Business: The Management team and Board continue to assess the potential financial and
operational impacts on the Branch, including the potential impact on expected claims. Proactive
steps have been taken including robust financial forecasting scenarios, cashflow forecasting and

the review of policy benefit strategies.

Given the continued uncertajnties, any financial impact cannot be determined with certainty.
However, given Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd's response to the pandemic,
Management believes there is no material uncertainty of going concern and the annual financial
report has been prepared on this basis.

(e} Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars, which is Halimark General
Insurance Company Ltd Branch's functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(f) Reunding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, or in
certain cases, the nearest dollar. :

(g) Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements that conform to accounting standards requires
Management to exercise judgement in applying the Branch’s accounting policies and to make
estimates and assumptions. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have
a financial impact on the Branch and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Measurement of Outstanding Claims Liabilities

While the methodologies and assumptions applied remained unchanged from those applied in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has incorporated
estimates, assumptions and judgements specific to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic into the
measurement calculations as described in Note 3.2,

1.2 Other significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements have been
included in the relevant notes to which the policies relate. Other significant accounting policies
are listed below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency’).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a net basis within other operating income or other expenses.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.3 New and amended standards

(a} New and amended standards adopted

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting - the NZ IFRS issued a new framework in May 2019
and applies to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The new Framework includes
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also introduces new
concepts on measurement, presentation and disclosure and new guidance on derecognition of
assets and liabilities.

Other amended standards
Other amended Standards that became effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

did not have a material impact on the Branch.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2020
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Branch. The Branch expects to adopt
these on their effective dates.

NZ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - NZ [FRS 17 is effective for financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2023. The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts. The objective of NZ IFRS 17 is to ensure that
an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance
contracts have on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The Branch
is currently assessing the impact of the new requirements,
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 2 - Results
2.1 Revenue and expenses

1055 a d other comprehenswe mcome as mvestment revenue :

Clalms expenses A - L : -
‘The branch’s claims liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments relatlng
to’ cla:ms mcurred at:the reporting date. The expected future payments mclude those: esnmates in;
relation’ to-claims incurred but not yet enough reported [IBNER’S} and clalrns mcurred but not
reported (INBR’s} based on past experlence , S

'Claams mcurred all relate to premdmg services, including the bearmg of l‘lSk and are accordmgky
treated as. e,xpenses in the- statement of profit-or loss and othér comprehensnve u'.lcome ‘Cldims’
expenses represent total claim payments made during the year ad;usted for the: movement in the
outstandmg clalms Ilablhty . : : =
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.1 Revenue and expenses {continued)

The claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appomted
actuary whose key assumptions are outliried in note 3.2.

Other expenses
Other expenses are recogmsed in the statement of proﬁt or loss and other comprehenswe income

on an accruals b351s

Outward reinsurance premium : :

Premium ceded: to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accurdance with the pattern of
reinsurance service received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at
the reporting date as deferred reinsurance expense. Reinsurance recoveries on claims mcurred are
recogmsed asrevenue. .

Deferred acqulsmon costs - S S

Costs, which vary with and are primarily relatecl to the production of new business, have been
deferred to the extént such costs are deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs primarily
include commissions. These costs are amortised in proportion to premiums ovér the estimated lives
of the policies. A write down to recoverable amount is recognised where the present value of
expected futire claims (including settlement costs) in relation to business written to the end of the
reportmg period exceeds related unearned premlums less the deferred acquisition costs.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

‘Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net.of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, it is recogmsed as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated
inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet. Cash flows
are presented on agross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as
operating cash flows.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.1 Revenue and expenses (continued)

(a) Netinsurance premium revenue

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Gross written premium 5919 13,732
Movement in Unearned Premium 6,760 1,787
Net premiisim revenue 12,679 15,519
(b) Investmentincome
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Interest income 652 1,025
Total investment income 652 1,025
{c¢) Netclaims incurred
2020 2019
Current Prior Current Prior
Year Years Total Year Years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross claims incurred
and related expenses
- undiscounted 8,609 69 8,678 3,767 (320) 3,447
Discount and '
discount movement -
gross claims incurred (10) 27 17 20 32 12
8,599 96 8,695 3,747 (288) 3,459
Net claims incurred 8,599 96 8,695 3,747 {288) 3,459

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior period claims relate
to a reassessment of the risks borne in all previcus financial years.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.1 Revenue and expenses {continued)

(d) Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating
activities

2020 2019
$000 $'060
Net (loss)/profit after income tax (2,112) 5,119
Adjustments
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 68 210
Decrease in deferred acquisition costs 1,360 382
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other payables 482 (36)
Increase in outstanding claim liability 3,353 295
Decrease in unearned premium lability {6,761) (1,787)
(Increase}/decrease in current tax liability {95] 17
Net cash (used in) /provided by operating activities {3,705) 4,200
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax

Acco n 'n'* olic

'I‘axatlon
lncome tax . _ o
The ancome tax expenSe or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the ‘cu rent" yeri

where appropnate based on amounts expected to be pald to the tax authoritles

As: the Branch is?a,non-resrdent general insurer in New Zealand for tax purposes, 1t 15 taxed at§
10%of its New Zealand sourced Gross Premium Income. Deductxons form’ expendlture are not
allowed. A non-resadent w1thholdmg tax of 10% or approved 1ssuer levy of 2% applles to any New
Zealand sourc 24 'nterest income on mVestments - : :

Deferred tax s ' e

Deferred income tax is prov1ded in full usmg the 11ab1hty method on, tempo
:arlsmg hetwe‘ 'Lthe tax bases of assets-and liabilities and their carrying amount f
hablhtles are not recognised if they arise from the initial récognition of goodw:li De err_ d in
tax.is’ also not accounted for if it arises from. initial recognition of-an asset or: liabi ity,
transactmn other than a’business combination, that, at the time of the transactlon affects neither
accounnng nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determmed using tax rates: (and
laws) that have been énacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reportmg perlod andare
Aexpected t0. apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the. deferred income
tax; llabll:ty is- settled, Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible’ temporary’ dszerences
and unused tax’ Tosses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be avallable to utilise:
those temporary dlfferences and losses. Deferred tax assets.and liabilities are offset:-when there
isg iegally enforceable nght to.offset current tax assets and liabilities-and when the deferred tax’
balances telate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liapilities are offset wheén
therefsa Eegally enforceab]e rightt to offset and an intention to settle the hablhty mmultaneousiy :
Current'and deferted tax is recogmsed in the statement of profit or loss exceptto the extent: that,
it re]ates to items: recogmser.l in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,.
the tax 1s also. recogmsed n other comprehenswe income or chrectly in equlty respectlvely

Taxat:on bas:s ' B
As the Branch isa non res1dent for tax purposes, general insurer in New Zealan 1iti
10%:0f its’ New Zealand sourced gross-premium income. Deductlons for” eXpendltu ,.e'.are not
'aIIowed A non-resrdent w1thholdmg tax of 10% or. approved 1ssuer ]evy of 2% apphes to: any New_
Zealand: sourced interestincome on investments. e

Page |21




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.2 Income tax expense and deferred tax (continued)

(a) Income tax expense

2020 2019

$'000 $'000

Current tax on profits for the year 355 434
355 434

Income tax expense

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable

2020 2019
$'000 5000
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations before income tax expense {1,757} 5,553
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% {492) 1,555
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating
taxable income:
Permanent differences {"} 847 {1,121)
Income tax expense 355 434

A Tax effect of non-assessable income
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 3 - General Insurance Assets & Liabilities and Risk
Management
3. 1 Assets and llabllltles

-_doubtfu debts. ollectabthty‘of premlunri and other recewables is reviéwe ;

,Debts?whlch are known:to be_ uncollectlbie are written off in- ‘the perlod i Whl‘_:\




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

value, excluding transaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date with
realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value recogn:sed in the
profit orloss in the period in which they arise.

Impalrment of assets

The carrying amount of the Branch’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax- assets, are
assessed annually for indicators of impairment, if-any such indicator exists, then the. asset's
recoverable amount is estlmated . : .

An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds jts recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been
re-valued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that
previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the profit or loss

Where an impairmentloss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised
‘estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment is recognlsed lmmediately in the profit or
loss.

Trade and other hab:llt:es _
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services promded to the Branch prior to the
end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usuaily paid
within 90 days of recognition.

Outstandmg clalms liability
The liability for outstanding claims covers the expected future payments for clalms including
IBNR and IBNER claims and the anticipated direct and 1nd1rec4; costs of s_ettlmg _these ciaims

The hablhty for outstandmg claims is subject to yearly actuarial review, The general approach to
the actuarial estimation of oulstandlng cldims is'to analyse all available past experience. Based
on this, the expected future payrnents are determmed and discounted to present value using a
risk free rate

‘The provaswn for the outstanding claims liability also contains a nsk margin to reﬂect the
inherent uncertamty in the central estimate. The risk margin increases the probablhty that the
net llablhty is. adequate[y provided for to a90% (2019 90%]) conﬁdence 1evel

Liability adequacy test :

The adequacy of the insurance contract hablhtles is evaluated each year. The insurance contract
test considers current estimates of all contractual and related cash flows. Ifitis determined using
‘best estimate assuniptions that a shortfall exists, itis lmmedlately recognised in the profit or loss.

Unexpired risk liability
Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general insurance business where the
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

expected value of claims and expenses attrlbuted to the unexpired perlods of pohcxes In force at
‘the end, of the reportmg perlod exceeds the unearned premmms prowsien m relatx ) tch'

1mmed1ately inthe proﬁt orloss, Refer to note 3 1(f] ).
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.1 Assets and liabilities {(continued)

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,415 890
Short term deposits 11,500 25,800
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,915 26,690
(b) Investments

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current assets
Term deposits 16,050 8,450
Total investments 16,050 8,450
() Trade and other receivables

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
Current assets ;
Other receivables 180 248
Total trade and other receivables 180 248

The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.

{(d) Deferred acquisition costs

2020 2019

$000 $'000
Current 1,717 2,582
Non-current 1,375 1,870
Total deferred acquisition costs 3,092 4,452
Reconciliation of changes in acquisition costs:
Opening balance at 1 January 4,452 4,834
Acquisition costs incurred during the year 146 1,456
Amortisation charged to income {1,506) (1,838)
Closing balance at 31 December 3,092 4,452

Acquisition costs incurred during the year and amortisation charged to income relate to the
Personal Loans portfolios as there were no deferred acquisition costs as at 31 December 2020

and 31 December 2019 for the Credit Card portfolios.
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)
(e) Trade and other liabilities

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Current
Trade and other payables 684 227
Accrued expenses 30 5
714 232
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximates fair value.
These balances include amounts payable to related parties (note 5.3{c]}.
(f) Outstanding claims Jiability
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Central estimate 4,209 1,957
Risk margin 1,558 716
Claims handling expense 550 348
6,357 3,021
Discount to present value (11) (29)
Gross outstanding claims liability 6,346 2,992
Current 4,716 2,004
Non-current 1,630 a9g8
Total outstanding claims liability 6,316 2,992

(i} The following ranges of discount rates were used in the measurement of outstanding claims and

reinsurance recoveries.

The current year discount rate is 0.26% (2019: 1.12%)
The subsequent years discount rate is 0.26% (2019: 1.12%)

The weighted average expected term to settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the

reporting period is estimated to be 0.68 years (2019: 0.86 years)
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

(ii} Riskmargin
Process for determining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The
overall margin adopted is determined by the Board after considering the uncertainty in the
portfolio, industry trends and the Branch’s risk appetite,

To determine the margin adopted the Appointed Actuary has reviewed the factors impacting the
portfolio to establish a recommended margin at the level required by the Board. Factors
considered include:

» variability of claims experience of the portfolio; quality of historical data;
» diversification between different classes within the portfolio; and
e increase in uncertainty due to future economic environment and legislative changes.

The level of uncertainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopted risk margin varies
between business classes. The risk margin is applied to the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversification allowance, is intended to achieve a 90% (2019
90%) probability of sufficiency.

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portfolio for 90% (2019: 90%) level of
adequacy are: '

2020 2019
% %
Consumier credit insurance - disability 303 30.3
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 35.7 35.7
(iii} Reconciliation of movement in discounted outstanding claims liability
2020 2019
Gross Tatal Gross Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2,992 2,992 2,698 2,698
Current year claims incurred 8,599 8,599 3,747 3,747
Change in previous year claims 90 920 {288) {288)
Current year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered {3,391) (3,391) {1,658) (1,658)
Previous year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered (1,944) (1,944) {1,507) {1,507)
Closing balance at 31
December 6,346 6,346 2,992 2,992
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

(iv) Claims development tables

Claims development tables are disclosed in order to put the claims estimates included in the
financial statements into context, allowing comparison of those claims estimates with the claims
results seen in previous years. In effect, the table highlights the Branch's ability to provide a
reliable estimate of the total value of claims. The top part of the table provides a review of current
estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated claims have changed at
subsequent reporting or accidents year-ends. The lower part of the table provides a reconciliation
of the total reserve included in the statement of financial position and the estimates of cumulative
claims. ‘

Gross

Repeorting Year Accident Year
Prior* 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Tatal
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'600 $'000 $'000 3’000

Estimate of gross

ultimate claims

cost

At end of reporting

year 3,132 2,881 3,046 3,255 3,485 8,067

One year later 2,946 2,295 2,629 2,963 4,871 5,522

Two years later 2,287 2,907 2,351 2,651 3,379 5,492

Three years later 2,253 2,906 2,353 2771 3,584

Fouryears later 2,244 2,910 2,412 2,800

Five years later 2,239 2951 2,440

Six years later 2,275 2,951

Seven years later 2,286

Current estimate of

cumuiative claims 3,757 2,287 2,951 2,440 2,800 3,584 5,492 5,522 8,067 36,900

Cumulative

payments to date 3,757 2,286 2,951 2,439 2,795 3,564 5,205 4,712 3,335 31,134

Undiscounted
claims handling

expenses - - - - 1 2 20 83 485 591
Gross outstanding

claims -

undiscounted - 1 - 1 6 22 217 893 5217 6,357
Discount impact - - - - - - - (2) {9) {11)
Gross outstandling

clalms - discounted - 1 - 1 6 22 217 991 5,208 6,346
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3.1 Assets and liabilities (continued)

Net
Reporting Year Accident Year
Prior* 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
$'000 3006 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'aco $'000 $'000 $'000
Estimate of net
ultimate claims
cast
Atend of reporting
year - . - 3,132 2,881 3,046 3,255 3,485 8,067 -
One year later - - 2,946 2,295 2,629 2,963 4871 5,522 - -
Twa years later - 2217 2,907 2,351 2,651 3,379 5,492 - - -
Three years later B 2,253 2,906 2,353 2,771 3,584 - - - -
Four years later - 2,244 2,910 2,412 2,800 - - - - -
Five years later - 2,239 2,951 2,440 - - - - - -
Six years later - 2,275 2,951 - - - - - - -
Seven years later - 2,286 - - - - - - -
Current estimate of
cumulative claims 3,757 2,287 2,951 2,440 2,800 3,584 5492 5,522 8,067 36,900
Cumulative
payments to date 3,757 2,286 2,951 2,439 2,795 3,564 5,295 4,712 3,335 31,134
Undigcounted claims
handling expenses - - - 15 24 58 150 372 1,004 1,623
Net outstanding
claims -
undiscounted " 1 - 1 ] 22 217 993 5,217 6,357
Discount impact - - - - - - - (2) {9} (11)
Net outstanding
claims - discounted - 1 - 1 1] 22 217 891 5,208 6,346

(v} Liability adequacy test

The liability adequacy test (LAT} is an assessment of the carrying amount of unearned premium
liabilities and is conducted at the end of each reporting period. The test is calculated separately
for each portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together
as a single portfolio.

The probability of sufficiency adopted for LAT differs from the 50% (2019: 90%) probability of
sufficiency adopted in determining the outstanding claims liabilities (refer to note 3.1). The
reason for this difference is that the former is in effect an impairment test used only to test the
sufficiency of net premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measurement accounting policy used
in determining the carrying value of the outstanding claims liabilities.

For the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the net premium liabilities at a 75% probability of
sufficiency as at 31 December 2020 is $12,348,173 (2019: $16,143,800), therefore the liability
adequacy test at reporting date resulted in a surplus for the Branch.
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(g) Unearned premium liability

2020 2019

$'000 $'600
Balance as at 1 January 22,215 24,002
Premiums written during the year 730 7,281
Premiums earned during the year {7,491) (9,068)
Closing balance as at 31 December 15454 22,215
Current 8,581 12,885
Non-current 6,873 9,330
‘FTotal unearned premium liability 15,454 22,215

Premiums written and earned during the year relate to the Personal Loans portfolios as there
were no unearned premium liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 for the

Credit Card portfolios.
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods
{a) Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilities (actuarial methods)

The Company writes consumer credit insurances. The risks covered in this group include:
Involuntary Unemployment

Disability

Merchandise Protection, Price Protection

Stolen Cards

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance liabilities is to analyse all available past
experience, including the number of reported and finalised claims, timing and amounts of claim
payments. This analysis allows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of Cutstanding Claims and Premium Liabilities at the
balance date can be estimated. Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing
of risk, and are accordingly treated as expenses in the profit or loss. Claims expenses represent
total claim payments made during the year adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims
liability.

The determination of the outstanding claims liabilities involves two steps:

1. The determination of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date,

The central estimate of outstanding claims includes an allowance for claims incurred but
not reported (IBNR) and the further development of reported claims, also known as
incurred but not enough reported (IBNER). The central estimate has no deliberate bias
towards either over or under estimation. This means that the central estimate is assessed
to have approximately 50% chance of adequacy.

2. The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision to be
added to the central estimates of outstanding claims. The risk margin is intended
to achieve a 909% probability of adequacy at an aggregate level,

The estimation of the outstanding claims liabilities involves the use of the following standard
aggregate projection methods: Payment Chain Ladder ("PCL"); Payment Per Claim Incurred
{“PPCI"); Payment Per Claim Finalised (“PPCF"}); Payment Per Claim Handled ("PPCH"}; and
Bornheutter Ferguson (“BF”). A blend of the projection methods is adopted based on the nature
of the claims within each portfolio to estimate the appropriate outstanding claims,

{b) Actuarial assumptions

The key actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims liabilities of
the consumer credit insurance portfolios are as follows:
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

2020

New Zealand:

Number of future
finalisations

Discounted loss ratio*
Expense rate
Discount rate

2019

New Zealand:

Number of future
finalisations

Discounted loss ratio*
Expense rate
Discount rate

*As at December

Other assumptions

Unemployment
(Personal
Loans)

351

46%

12%
0.26%

Unemployment
(Personal
Leoans)

121
8%
15.5%
1.12%

Disability
(Personal
Loans)

320
49%
12%

0.26%

Disability
(Personal
Loans)

251
26%
15.5%
1.12%

Unemployment
(Credit Cards)

50
32%
12%

n/a

Unemployment
(Credit Cards)

69
129
15.5%
n/a

Disahility
{Credit
Cards)

125
30%
12%
n/a

Disability
{Credit
Cards)

106
26%
15.5%
n/a

Merchandise
Protection, Price
Protection and
Stolen Cards
{Credit Cards)

39
9%
48%
n/a

Merchandise
Protection, Price
Protection and
Stolen Cards
(Credit Cards)

37
7%
15.5%
n/a

The outstanding claims provision for Disability (Personal Loans) includes an additional 1.3% for
medical expenses, with a prudential margin calculated at a 90% probability of adequacy.

The claims assumptions adopted to determine the outstanding claims liability takes into
consideration the impact on claims experience from the change in economic environment

{predominantly changes in unemployment rate} as a result of COVID19.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided

below:

Page |33



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

1. Number of future finalisations : The number of future finalisations has been based
on an analysis of historical claim reports and finalisation rates. This then enables the
future numbers of reports, handled claims and finalisations to be projected. The
analysis of historical claim reports and finalisation rates were performed separately
for COVID-19 related claims and non-COVID-19 related claims. For COVID-19 related
claims, the analysis allows for the higher unemployment and underemployment rate
and any changes in the claims acceptance process as a result of the lockdowns.

2. Average claim size : The adopted average claim size has been based on historical
ratios of claim payments to factors such number of claim reported, claim finalised or
handled. Adjustments are also made for the impacts which are not in historical claims
experience to arrive the final adopted assumption. Under the COVID19 economic
environment, the adjustment made to average claim size allows for the changes in the
claimants’ behaviour arising from a higher unemployment or underemployment rate.

3. Expense rate : The adopted claims handling expense rate of 12.2% (2019: 15.5%) of
the projected gross claim payments, has been determined based on the results of an
expense allocation carried out in 2020,

4. Discount rate : The central estimate of the Cutstanding Claims Liabilities has been
discounted to allow for future investment income attributable to the liabilities during
the run off period. The future investment earnings assumptions are estimates of the
future annual risk-free rates of return. The discount factor has been based on the
annual risk-free rates of return from the yield curve on New Zealand Government
Bonds.

{c) Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reported results are calculated based on the key
actuarial assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial
assumptions will impact the profit or loss and equity of the Branch. The table below describes
how a change in each of the assumptions will affect the outstanding claims liabilities. The
outstanding claims liabilities are on a discounted basis and include claim handling expenses and
a risk margin at the 90% probability of adequacy.
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3.2 Actuarial assumptions and methods {(continued)

{c) Sensitivity analysis {(continued)

Key actuarial
assumptions 2020

New Zealand:
Chain ladder factor

Discount rate

Claims handling expense

rate

Key actuarial
assumptions 2019

New Zealand:
Chain ladder factor

Discount rate

Claims handling expense

rate

Changes

Increase the chain
ladder factor by 10%
Decrease discount rate
by 1%

Increase claims
handling expense rate
by 4%

Changes

Increase the chain
ladder factor by 10%
Pecrease discount rate
by 1%

Increase from claims
handling expense rate
by 4%

Impact on net
outstanding claims
liabilities ($'000’s)

+87

+47

+256

Impact on net
outstanding claims
liabilities ($'000’s)

+34

+26

+117

Impact on total
outstanding claims
liabilities (%)

+1.37

+0.74

+4.03

Impact on total
outstanding claims
liabilities {%5)

+1.14
+0.86

+3.90
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3.3 Financial risk management

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty failing to meet their contractual
obligations, arising principally arises from through the Branch’s investment in financial
instruments, receivables from related or other parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

Risk management

The Branch has strategies in place to minimise future losses including the assessment of
acceptable concentration risk. New strategies are implemented to take appropriate action if
adverse trends occur.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Branch's exposure to credit
risk:

{a) Financial assets

The Branch's investment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by
the Board. The guidelines establish credit approval authorities, concentrations limits, and
approved investment portfolio parameters, these guidelines comply with the Investment Policy.
Management conducts a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is monitored and
exposures or breaches are reported to the Board. The mandate is reviewed regularly for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

The Branch only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A3/BBB- from
Standard & Poor's (S&P). The Branch further limits its exposure to credit risk by setting individual
exposure limits. There is ne significant concentration of credit risk and management does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

(b) Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management
strategy (ReMS). Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The Branch further
sets its exposure to credit risk by setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporting
period, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the

ReMS.

{c) Trade and other receivables

The Branch's maximum credit risk exposure at balance date is limited to the carrying amount of
the financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The Branch does not have a
significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (Seenote

5.3(b))-
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

The table below shows the Branch's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.

Non- Non-
investment investiment Tetal neither
Investment grade grade pastdue nor Pastdue or

grade satisfactory* unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 14,915 - - 14,915 - 14,915
Investments 16,050 16,050 16,050
Trade and other
receivables - 180 - 180 - 180
Teotal creditrisk
exposure 30,965 180 - 31,145 - 31,145

Non- Non-
investment investnent Total neither
Investment grade grade pastdue nor Past due or

grade satisfactory* unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 26,690 - - 26,690 - 26,690
Investments 8,450 - - 8,450 - 8,450
Trade and other
receivables - 248 - 248 - 248
Total credit risk
exposure 35,140 248 - 35,388 - 35,388

*A receivable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied that the obligor has the
capacity to meet its financial obligations.

Page |37



Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

The table below classifies the financial assets of the Company by counterparty credit rating

{S&P}
AAA AA A BBB Notrated Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,415 11,500 - - - 14,915
Investments 10,050 6,000 - - - 16,050
Trade and other receivables - - - - 180 180
Total credit risk exposure 13,465 17,500 - - 186 31,145
AAA AA A BBB Notrated Total
2019 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'0600
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 26,690 - - 26,690
Investments 900 7,550 - - - 8,450
Trade and other receivables - - - - 248 248
Total credit risk exposure 300 7,550 26,690 - 248 35,388

The receivables and investment in controlled entity are largely with related parties, refer to
nate 5.3(b}. No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (201%: nil).
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3.3 Financial risk management {continued}

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Branch will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Branch's objective and funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of

funding sources to meet actual and contingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market
conditions.

The Branch's liquidity is primarily monitored through the production of statement of cash flows
for Board review. Periodic review of the maturity profile of the Branch's financial assets and
liabilities is performed to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of both cash and cash equivalents; investments
and of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the Branch's financial liabilities at
balance date:

Uptoa 1-2 2-5 Overbs
year  years  years years Total
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 14,915 - - - 14,915
Investments 16,050 - ~ - 16,050
Trade and other liabilities (713) - - - (713)
Outstanding claims liability (4,716) (1,060) (564) {6) {6,346}
Net liguid assets 25,536 (1,060} (564) (6} 23,906
Uptoa 1-2 2-5 Over5
year  years  years  years Total
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'c00 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 26,690 - - - 26,690
Investments 8,450 - - - 8,450
Trade and other liabilities (232) - - - {232)
Qutstanding claims liability (2,004} (616) (369} {31 (2,992)
Net liguid assets 32,904 (616) {369) {3) 31,915

The Branch's financial assets and liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at amounts that
approximate fair value,

Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recognised assets and liabilities or the cash flows from
possible future transactions, that are denominated in a currency, other than that of the functional
currency, will decrease due to changes in market exchange rates.

The Branch has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material,
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates.

The following table analyses the impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest
rates on the Branch's operating results.

Impact on
Carrying Change in profit
amount variables before tax Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over5
year 1-2 years 2-5years years
2020 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 11,500 -0.25% (29) (21) - - - (21)
Investments 16,050 -0.25% {40) (29) - - - (29)
Total 27,550 (69) {50} - - - (50)
Impact on
Carrying Changein profit
amount variables before tax Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over5
year 1-2years 2-5years years
2019 $'000 % $'000 $'eoo $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 25,800 -1% (343) (247) - - . (247)
Investments 8,450 -19% (21) (15} - - - (15)
Total 34,250 (343) (247} - - - {(247)

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020 with the variable interest rate being
reduced to a minimum of 0.0% if applicable.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities or financial instruments could change due to
fluctuations in market prices. The Branch has no equity securities as at 31 December 2020,
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

Insurance risk

{d)insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk
from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future
event that will adversely affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty
surrounding the probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its
effect. Insurance risk is assessed by the Branch at a contract level on its inception and is
periodically reassessed as the risk may vary during the period of insurance cover.

The majority of direct insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis.
There are no special term and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material
impact on the financial statements.

The business written consists mainly of consumer general insurance.

{e}Insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financial
impact of events that may require settlement by the insurer; and the ability of the Branch to
mitigate the financial impact of these events on its operating results.

In accordance with Prudential Standards CPS 220 Risk Management and GPS 230 Reinsurance
Management for Life and General Insurers issued by APRA, the Board and senior management of
the Branch have developed, implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management
strategy {RMS) and a reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS identify the Branch's policles, procedures, processes and controls that
address all known material risks, financial and non-financial a rising from the business. Annualily,
the board certifies to APRA that adequate strategies have been put in place to monitor those risks,
that the Branch has systems in place to ensure compliance with legislative and prudential
requirements, and that the board has satisfied itself as to the compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further below.
() Underwriting strategy

The Board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the Branch has the ability to
meet the insurance needs of the policy holders and to ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims
when due. The strategy involves the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and
involves the application of mathematical modeling to determine that products are appropriately
priced.
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3.3 Financial risk management (continued)

{iy Reinsurance strategy

A conservative approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the
Branch and where deemed appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured events
according to its ReMS. All reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and statistical modeling to
ensure that they offer a sufficient level of cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment
with the ReMs of the Branch.

() Claims management

Strict claims management procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in
accordance with policy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored to track the actual versus
expected experience of the portfolio, with feedback delivered to underwriting and product
development.

v} Concentration of insurance risk

The Branch's portfolio of products and policy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there is
neo material concentration of insurance risk.
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Section 4 - Capital Management

4,1 Capital management

As the Branch is not a separate legal entity with equity, its capital requirements are equivalent to
those of the Company (Hallmark General Insurance Ltd).

The Branch's capital management strategy plays a central role in managing capital risk arising
from the business activities of the Branch, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect
policyholders' interests and satisfy regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficient capital
levels are maintained in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The Branch has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage
its capital position, The target surplus level has been set with reference to a range of risks and
possible adverse scenarios faced by the Branch.

The Branch has net assets in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting its
current strong capital position.

In addition to the Branch's target surplus policy, external capital requirements are set and
regulated by APRA. The Branch calculates its capital position according to the relevant prudential
standards which ensures sufficient capital margins within the life statutory funds are maintained.
An insurer's capital base js expected to be adequate for the size, business mix, complexity and rigk
profile of its business.

It is the Branch's policy to hold a capital base in excess of those required by APRA according to its
target surplus policy. The capital level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a regulatory
breach.

As the Branch is regulated by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) for solvency
purposes, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) exempts the Branch from complying with the
solvency standard for non-life insurance business in New Zealand.

Capital adequacy

The Branch is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the general insurance contract
liabilities, as a buffer against adverse future experience and poor investment returns. The
amendments to the risk-based prudential capital standards, Life and General Insurance Capital
{LAGIC) standards, for Australian life and general insurance companies were introduced effective
1July 2019. The required level of capital for regulatory purposes {the Prescribed Capital Amount,
or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a general insurer is exposed
and a general company must ensure that the general company has, at all times, a capital base in
excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as required by APRA).

The excess of the Branch's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2020 was $61.0 million
(2019: $65.6 million).
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4.1 Capital management

In addition to the regulatory capital requirements, the Branch maintains a target surplus

providing an additional capital buffer against adverse events.

2020 2019

$'000 $000
(a} Capital base 83,626 92,095
(b) Prescribed capital ameount 22,589 26,498
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a} - (b) 61,037 65,598
Capital adequacy multiple = (a)/(b) 3.70 3.48
Capital Base:
Net assets 82,756 89,453
Regulatery adjustment applied in the calculation of tier 1 capital 870 2,642
Common equity Tier 1 Capital 83,626 92,095
Prescribed capital amount:
Insurance risk charge 6,978 8,073
Insurance concentration risk charge 13,145 15,508
Asset risk charge 2,520 3,317
Operational risk charge 1,815 2,037
Apgregation benefit (1,868) {2,437)
Prescribed capital amount 22,590 26,498

Excess technical provisions

The liability required by GPS 110 for prudential reporting purposes differs from accounting
purposes. As described in 3,1(f) the Branch applies risk margins to the central estimate of net
outstanding claims to achieve a 90% confidence level. GPS 110 requires a prudential margin with

a sufficiency of 75%.
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Section 5 - Other Disclosures

5.1 Commitments and contingencies

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is subject to a number of obligations which, if not
discharged, may give rise to potential claims. Where some loss from non-performance of an
obligation is more likely than not and can be reliably estimated, provisions have been made. The
Branch considers that the outcome of any specific enquiry which is underway as at 31 December
2020, and has not been provided for, is not expected to affect its financial position in any material
way, either individually or in aggregate.

Regulatory and customer exposures

In recent years there has been an increase in the number of matters on which the Branch engages
with its regulators. There have also been significant increases in the nature and scale of regulatory
investigations, surveillance and reviews, civil and criminal enfoercement actions (whether by
court action or otherwise), formal and informal inguiries, regulatory supervisory activities and
the quantum of fines issued by regulators, particularly against financial institutions both in
Australia and globally. The Branch has received various requests for information from its
regulators as part of both industry-wide and Company-specific reviews and has also made
disclosures to its regulators at its own instigation. The nature of these interactions can be wide
ranging and, for example, currently include a range of matters including product suitability and
distribution, customer remediation and insurance distribution. There may be exposures to
customers which are additional to any regulatory exposures. These could include individual
claims or customer remediation or compensation activities. The outcomes and total costs
associated with such reviews and possible exposures remain uncertain.

There is a risk that any contingent liability may be larger than anticipated. There is also arisk that
additional litigation or contingent liabilities may arise, all of which could adversely affect our
business, prospects, reputation, financial performance or financial condition.

No commitments, contingent assets or contingent liabilities existed as at 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

5.2 Events occurring after the reporting date

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2020 that has significantly affected, or
may significantly affect:

(a) the Company's operations;
(b) the results of those operations; or
(© the Company's state of affairs.
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5.3 Related party transactions

(a) Key management personnel disclosures

Any remuneration received by directors was received in their capacity as directors of Hallmark

General Insurance Company Ltd.

(b} Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2020
$
Management fees paid to/(received from):
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd 3,716,490
Commission paid to:
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ 1,183,777
Dividend paid/(received]}:
Latitude Insurance Holdings Pty Ltd 470,385
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
2020
$
Receivables/(pavables} outstanding at the end of the period:
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd {360,338)
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ {446,857}

2019

4,258,491

2,746,448

5,550,020

2019
3

(419,052)
567,223

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no
expense has been recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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5.4 Remuneration of auditor

No remuneration received to auditors has been recognised; this expense was incurred by the
head office of the branch.
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5.5 Reclassification

Certain cash equivalents have been reclassified to investments to conform to the current year's
presentation. The reclassification does not have any effect on total assets, total equity and profit
or loss as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020. Below is summary of the reclassification.

As previously As
reported reclassified
2019 Reclassification 2020
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents 35,140 (4,089) 26,690
- 4,089 8,450

{nvestments
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The Board of Directors 23 February 2021
Hallmark General Insurance Company L.td

800 Collins Street

Melbourne VIC 3008

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd:
Appointed Actuary signoff of financial statements and financial condition as at
31 December 2020 for New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors

Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd ("HGIC™) is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority (“APRA™) and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ").

On 23 May 2018, HGIC appointed me, Melissa Yan of Ernst & Young to be HGIC's Appointed Actuary. The
Appointed Actuary role is as described by the Insurance Act 1973, related Prudential Standards and

Prudential Practice Guides current at 31 December 2020, and by the New Zealand Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship with HGIC other than being its Appointed Actuary.

It is the responsibility of the Appointed Actuary to provide advice to the Board of a general insurer on the
value of its insurance liabilities and the preparation of the actuarial information contained in its financial
statements. The Appointed Actuary must provide written advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of
insurance liabilities in accordance with APRA's Prudential Standard CPS320, Actuarial and Related
Matters.

As part of my responsibilities, | have produced a report on HGIC's insurance liabilities and financia
condition, the Financial Condition Report ("FCR™), as at 31 December 2020, dated 23 February 2021. The
scope of the FCR is to provide the Board and management with an objective assessment of the financial
condition of the Australian and New Zealand business within HGIC as at 31 December 2020. The FCR
identifies and assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes discussion of relevant risk mitigants.

| have relied upon the general completeness and accuracy of this data and information supplied by HGIC
without independent verification. However, | have reviewed the information for reasonableness and
consistency with my knowledge of the financial services industry.

The RENZ has exempted HGIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance
Business. This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the
Appointed Actuary. These obiigations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate, | have
commented on total HGIC Company level results and also separately in relation to the resulfs of the New
Zealand Branch of HGIC.

Financial Statements - HGIC Company

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particufar:

a. Unearned premium liability and liability adequacy test
b. Net outstanding claims liability

c. Reinsurance and any other recovery assets

Liability fimited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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d. Deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. I confirm that this FCR and my Actuarial Valuation Report ("AVR") meets the
requirements of section 78 of The Act, and contains my advice regarding the net premium liabilities,
liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims liabilities, reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and
deferred acquisition costs. The FCR also includes advice on capital requirements, which form part of the
financial statements.

| have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them to be appropriate. For
the current AVR | have also checked the unearned premium calculation performed by HGIC for certain
product types and the calculations appear to be reasonable.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HGIC financial statements, submitted to the Board for
approval on 23 February 2021, has been appropriately included in those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HGIC financial
statements.

| have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other
information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Financial Statements - HGIC New Zealand Branch

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the New
Zealand Branch financial statements and in particular:

a. Unearned premium Hability and liability adequacy test
b. Net outstanding claims liability

¢. Reinsurance and any other recovery assets

d. Deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. | confirm that this FCR and my AVR meets the requirements of section 78 of
The Act, and contains my advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net
outstanding claims liabilities, reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs.
The FCR also includes advice on capital requirements, which form part of the financial statements.

[ have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them to be appropriate. For
the current AVR | have also checked the unearned premium calculation performed by HGIC for certain
product types and the calculations appear to be reasonable.

In my opinion and fram an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HGIC New Zealand Branch financial statements,
submitted to the Board for approval on 23 February 2021, has been appropriately included in
those statements; and



Building a better
working world

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HGIC New Zealand
Branch financial statements.

| have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other information
that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reparting.

Financial Condition Report

The Appointed Actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Report which must:

a. ldentify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the Appointed Actuary to be
aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the Appointed Actuary's opinion, pose a threat to the licensed
insurer's ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where practicable
guantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in (a)

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand husiness, these comments can be in line with Australian
requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the Appointed Actuary’s opinion, the licensed insurer needs
to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the licensed
insurer’s forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the Appointed Actuary's
assessment of the licensed insurer’s business plans, its enterprise risk management practices and the
external environment.

The Appointed Actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Non-Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a
whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of regulatory action or
{itigation.

The FCR identifles and assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes mitigating factors addressing
those risks and therefore meets the requirements of Section 56(d) of the Act. The capital within HGIC is
equally accessible by both the Australian and New Zealand operations.

HGIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2020, with available capital exceeding the
target surpius. Capital requirements are expected to be met over the year and also in subsequent years,
and hence no reporting under Section 24 of the Act is required. In my opinion HGIC is maintaining a
solvency margin consistent with the requirements under section 21(2) (b) of the Act. HGIC does not
underwrite any life insurance products. As such no opinion under Section 78(h) of the Act is required.

This strong position means that HGIC would be able to withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar to
the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed in conjunction and | am not aware of any
differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a whole
which might have implications if the two were separated.

Yours sincerely,

Melissa Yan, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd



